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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein; for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company'’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the sharehalders ar members.

L.T. SABADO & ASSOCIATES, CPAs, the independent auditor appointed by the sharehalders has
audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report to the shareholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such audit.

Signed this 10" day of June 2022.
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY FOR
ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION is respansible for all
information and representations contained in the Annual Incame Tax for the year ended December
31, 2021, Management is likewise responsible for all information and representations contained in
the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same reporting
period. Furthermore, the Management is responsible for all information and representations
contained in all the other tax returns filed for the reporting period, including, but not limited, to the
value added tax and/or percentage tax returns, withhalding tax returns, documentary stamp tax
returns, and any and all other tax returns, and any and all other tax returns.

In this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2021 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance with
the books and records of MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION, complete and
correct in all material respects. Management likewise affirms that:

(@) the Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of
the National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and
other issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

(b) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the
Income Tax Return pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling
ltems and maintained in the company’s books and records in accordance with the
requirements of Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances;

{(c) MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION has filed all applicable tax
returns, reports and statements required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the
reporting period, and all taxes and other impasitions shown thereon to be due and
payable have been paid for the reporting period, except those contested in good faith.
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.T. SABADO & ASSOCIATES

Certified Public Accountants
9-A-2-A Saint John St.

New Era, Quezon City

Tel: (632) 8290 8192

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO ACCOMPANY INCOME TAX RETURN

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION
2654 Leveriza St.

Malate, Manila

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Milestone Guaranty and Assurance
Corporation, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, on which we have
rendered the attached report dated June 10, 2022.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, we are stating the following:

1. The taxes paid or accrued by the above Company for the year ended December 31, 2021 are
shown in the Schedule of Taxes and Licenses attached to the Annual Income Tax Return.

2. No partner of our Firm is related by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or
principal shareholders of the Company.

I.T. SABADC & ASSOCIATES, CPAs
PRC/BOA Registration No. 1324

Until April 13, 2024

BIR Accreditation No. 07-000400-003-2020
Until May 26, 2023

IC Accreditation No. 1324-IC (Group A)
Until 2025 audit period

By: woTE s g U

MA SMERALDA A. BALDONIDO
Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0113018

Until June 11, 2023

IC Accreditation No. 113018-IC (Group A)
Until 2021 audit period

TIN 235-702-931

PTR No. 2543277

January 29, 2022

Quezan City

June 10, 2022



I.T. SABADO & ASSOCIATES

Certified Public Accountants
9-A-2-A Saint John St.

New Era, Quezon City

Tel: (632) 8290 8192

SUPPLEMENTAL WRITTEN STATEMENT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION
2654 Leveriza St.

Malate, Manila

We have examined the Financial Statements of Milestone Guaranty and Assurance Corporation for

the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, on which we have rendered the attached report
dated June 10, 2022.

In compliance with SRC Rule 68, We are stating that the said company has a total number of twelve
(12) shareholders owning one hundred (100} or more shares each.

I.T. SABADO & ASSOCIATES, CPAs
PRC/BOA Registration Na. 1324

Until April 13, 2024

BIR Accreditation No. 07-000400-003-2020
Until May 26, 2023

IC Accreditation No. 1324-IC (Graup A)
Until 2025 audit period

By:

MARIA ALDA A. BALDONIDO
Partner

CPAReg. No. 0113018

Until June 11, 2023

IC Accreditation No. 113018-1C (Group A)
Until 2021 audit period

TIN 235-702-931

PTR No. 2543277

January 29, 2022

Quezon City

June 10, 2022



I.T. SABADO & ASSOCIATES

Certified Public Accountants
9-A-2-A Saint John St.

New Era, Quezon City

Tel: (632) 8290 8192

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION
2654 Leveriza St.

Malate, Manila

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinian

We have audited the financial statements of Milestone Guaranty and Assurance Corporation, which
comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the
statements of income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years

then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines {Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going cancern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.




Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditar’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedure responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness af the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the gaoing concern basis of
accounting and, based on audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with thase charged with governance regarding, among ather matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.



Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010
in Notes to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of the management of Milestone Guaranty and Assurance Corporation. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of the basic
financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whale.

.T. SABADO & ASSOCIATES, CPAs
PRC/BOA Registration No. 1324

Until April 13, 2024

BIR Accreditation No. 07-000400-003-2020
Until May 26, 2023

IC Accreditation No. 1324-IC (Group A)
Until 2025 audit period

By:

: i @ 4 2
MARIA N E A A, BALDONIDO
Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0113018

uUntil June 11, 2023

IC Accreditation No. 113018-IC (Group A)
Until 2021 audit period

TIN 235-702-931

PTR No. 2543277

January 29, 2022

Quezon City

June 10, 2022



MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2021
{With comparative figures for 2020)

ASSETS
Notes 2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents 4 620,894,086 476,691,772
Insurance balances receivable 5 541,017,051 433,792,089
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income 6 1,512,126 1,670,678
Financial assets at amortized costs 7 386,743,177 333,575,137
Loans and receivables ] 363,709,819 158,770,536
Reinsurance assets 9 22,475,012 21,250,913
Deferred acquisition cost 10 48,867,214 46,410,020
Deferred reinsurance premium 11 19,809,373 15,905,872
investment properties 12 41,691,600 31,691,600
Property and equipment - net 13 284,449,051 280,130,501
Other assets 14 10,840,205 10,958,563
TOTAL ASSETS P 2,342,008,715 1,810,847,681

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities 15 410,428,700 344,269,868
Reinsurance payable 16 76,046,493 64,057,326
Commission payable 76,006,885 58,862,399
Deferred commision income 17 9,471,975 5,220,106
Accounts and other payables 138 41,692,966 48,265,139
Total Liabilities 613,647,019 520,674,839
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 20 1,066,000,700 872,954,300
Subscribed share capital 21 233,999,300 27,045,700
Deposit for future subscription 22 - 16,200,000
Contingency surplus 23 500,000 500,000
Contributed surplus 24 68,812 68,812
Fluctuation reserves 25 140,593,540 134,694,915
Accumulated profits 26 287,198,343 238,709,116
Total Shareholders' Equity 1,728,361,696 1,290,172,842
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 2,342,008,715 1,810,847,681

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended December 31, 2021

(With comparative figures for 2020)

Notes 2021 2020
REVENUE
Gross premiums earned on insurance contracts 27 588,785,864 508,289,752
Reinsurers' share on gross premiums earned ' 28 53,238,431 54,278,643
Net Premiums Earned 535,547,433 454,011,110
Commission income 29 7,115,256 7,658,714
TOTAL REVENUE 542,662,689 461,668,823
DIRECT COSTS
Net insurance benefits and claims 30 90,348,416 53,374,292
Commission expense 31 110,711,923 101,931,972
Other underwriting expenses 32 81,757,626 75,501,652
Total Direct Costs 282,817,965 230,807,915
GROSS INCOME 259,844,724 230,861,908
OTHER INCOME
Investment and other income 33 27,103,110 15,461,894
TOTAL INCOME 286,947,834 250,323,801
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 34 219,404,355 193,830,624
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 67,543,479 56,493,177
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 35 16,670,399 14,925,867
NET INCOME 50,873,080 41,567,311

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2021
{With comparative figures for 2020)

Note 2021 2020
Net Income P 50,873,080 P 41,567,311
Other Comprehensive Income:
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income 6,26 (158,552} (351,377)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 50,714,528 P 41,215,933

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

.
.



MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended December 31, 2021

{With comparative figures for 2020}

Notes 2021 2020
SHARE CAPITAL 20
Balance at beginning of year 872,954,300 P 697,280,100
Paid during the year 193,046,400 175,674,200
Balance at end of year 1,066,000,700 872,954,300
SUBSCRIBED SHARE CAPITAL 21
Balance at beginning of year 27,045,700 202,719,900
Increase (Decrease) during the year 206,953,600 (175,674,200)
Balance at end of year 233,999,300 27,045,700
DEPOSIT FOR FUTURE SUBSCRIPTION 22
Balance at beginning of year 16,200,000 -
Increase (Decrease) during the year (16,200,000) 16,200,000
Balance at end of year - 16,200,000
CONTINGENCY SURPLUS 23 500,000 500,000
CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS 24 68,812 68,812
FLUCTUATION RESERVES 25
Balance at beginning of year 134,694,915 94,606,742
Prior year adjustments 3,666,975 -
Balance at beginning of year as adjusted 138,361,890 94,606,742
Increase (Decrease) during the year 2,231,650 40,088,173
Balance at end of year 140,593,540 134,694,915
ACCUMULATED PROFITS 26
Balance at beginning of year 238,709,116 192,468,807
Prior year adjustments (3,713,333) 4,288,148
Balance at beginning of year as adjusted 234,995,783 196,756,955
Amortization of revaluation surplus 1,330,481 384,850
Net income for the year 50,873,080 41,567,311
Balance at end of year 287,199,344 238,709,116
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY p 1,728361,696 P 1,290,172,842

See accampanying Notes ta Financial Statements.
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MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended December 31, 2021
(With comparative figures far 2020)

Nates 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net income hefore income tax p 67,543,479 P 56,493,177
Adjustment for :
Investment and interest income 33 (17,683,472) (17,673,065)
Depreciation 13,34 6,538,982 5,111,263
Provision for uncollectible accounts 5,34 - 549,124
Amortized discount 7 (446,316) (537,411)
OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE CHANGES IN
OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 55,952,672 43,943,088
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities
Decrease (Increase) in:
Insurance balances receivable {107,224,962) (87,315,778)
Loans and other receivables 2,014,317 (87,769,689)
Reinsurance assets (1,224,099) (15,179,859)
Deferred acquisition cost 10 (2,457,194) (504,960)
Deferred reinsurance premium 11 (3,903,501) (4,918,491)
Other assets 14 118,357 334,364
Increase {Decrease) in:
Insurance balances payable 15 66,158,831 67,686,883
Reinsurance payables 16 11,989,167 35,351,343
Commission payable 17,144,486 21,555,958
Deferred commision incame 17 4,251,869 613,668
Accounts and other payable 18 (6,572,173) (10,173,653)
Net cash provided by operations 36,247,772 (36,377,124)
Income tax paid 3S (13,133,705) (11,420,752)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 23,114,066 (47,797,876)
CASH FLOWS FROIM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Acquisition of financial assets at amortized costs (83,721,724) (73,743,304)
Disposal of financial assets at amortized costs 7 31,000,000 51,500,000
Acquisition of investment properties 12 (10,000,000) -
Acquisition of property & equipment 13 (7,183,207) (35,453,170)
Investment and interest income 33 14,146,778 14,167,950
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES {55,758,153) (43,528,523)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Increase in share capital 20 193,046,400 175,674,200
Increase {Decrease) in deposit for future subscription 22 (16,200,000) 16,200,000
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 176,846,400 191,874,200
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 144,202,313 100,547,800
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 476,691,773 376,143,972
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR P 620,894,086 P 476,691,773

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

{(With comparative figures as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020)
(All amounts are shown in Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)

Note 1 - Organization and operation

MILESTONE GUARANTY AND ASSURANCE CORPORATION is a domestic corporation registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 20, 1962 and primarily engaged in the business of insurance
and guaranty in any line, except in life insurance, for a cansideratian, ta indemnify any person, firm or
corporation against loss, damage or liability arising from an unknown or contingent event and to
guarantee liabilities and obligation of any person, firm or corporation.

The registered address of the Company is at 2654 Saygan St., Malate, Manila City, Philippines.

The accompanying financial statements of the Company were reviewed and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on June 10, 2022.

LNote 2 - Significant accounting palicies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a histarical cost basis, except for financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) investments that have been measured at fair value. The
financial statements are measured in Philippine Peso (P), which is also the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. All values are rounded off to the nearest peso values, unless otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the financial framework set by the
Company as fully discussed in the Significant Accounting Policies.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The following are the new standards, amendments and interpretation effective as of lanuary 1, 2021
adopted by the Company. The adoption of the following accounting pronouncements did not have any
impact on the financial statements unless otherwise indicated. The Company did not early adopt any other
standard, amendment or interpretation that has been issued but is not yet effective.

o Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business
The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the assessment
of a market participant’s ability to replace missing elements, and narrow the definition of outputs. The
amendments also add guidance to assess whether an acquired pracess is substantive and add illustrative
examples. An optional fair value concentration test is introduced which permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

e Amendments to PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures and PFRS 9, Financial Instruments,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
The amendments to PFRS 9 provide a number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are
directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is-affected if the reform
gives rise to uncertainties about the timing and or amount of benchmark based cash ﬂows of the hedged
item or the hedging instrument. el L



° Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states “information is material if amitting,

misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of

general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity.”

The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A

misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users.

o Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued on March 29, 2018
The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override the
concepts or requirements in any standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist the
standard-setters in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies where
there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

The revised Conceptual Framework includes new concepts, provides updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities and clarifies some important concepts.

e Amendments to PFRS 16, COVID-19-related Rent Concessions
The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying the PFRS 16 requirement on lease modifications
to rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. A lessee may elect not to

assess whether a rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification if it meets all of the following
criteria:

o The rent concession is a direct conseguence of COVID-19;

o The change in lease payments results in a revised lease consideration that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the lease consideration immediately preceding the change;

o Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before June 30,
2021; and

o There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee that applies this practical expedient will account for any change in lease payments resulting from
the COVID-19 related rent concession in the same way it would account for a change that is not a lease
modification, i.e., as a variable lease payment.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020. Early
adoption is permitted. The adoption of these amendments does not have a significant impact on the
Company'’s financial statements.

Future Changes in Accounting Policies

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Company
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on its
financial statements. The Company intends to adopt the following pronouncements when they become
effective.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2021 _
o Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, PFRS
4, Insurance Contracts, and PFRS 16, Leases: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2



Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2022

° Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations: Reference to the Conceptual Framework

° Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds Before Intended Use

e Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

° Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle
o Amendments to PFRS 1, Subsidiary as a first-time adopter
o Amendments to PFRS 9, Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities
o Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease incentives
o Amendments to PAS 41, Taxation in fair value measurements

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2023
° Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

o PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and
measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace PFRS 4, Insurance
Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life,
non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as

to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features. A few scope
exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is more
useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are largely based on
grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance

contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of PFRS 17 is the general model,
supplemented by:

= A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach)

* A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration
contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning an or after January 1, 2023, with comparative figures
required. Early application is permitted.

Assessment is currently being made by the Company. The Company has established a project team, with
assistance from Actuarial, Finance, Risk, IT departments and various business sectors to study the
implication and to evaluate the potential impact of adopting this standard on the required effective date.

Deferred effectivity

e Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholde_rs. As 3 ‘gener‘al
guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benef:nts pa_ld
with benefits payable if the insured event did nat occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial

risk.




Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights
and obligations are extinguished or has expired.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements necessitates the use of estimates, assumptions and
judgments. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
end of the reporting period as well as affecting the reported income and expenses for the period. Although
the estimates are based on management’s best knowledge and judgment of current facts as at the end of
the reporting period, the actual outcome may differ from these estimates, possibly significantly. For
further information on critical estimates and judgments, refer to Note 3.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less from
dates of placements and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments pertain to time deposits with terms exceeding three months but not more than
one year and earns interest at the respective short-term investment rates.

Reinsurance assumed

The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for non-life insurance
contracts where applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized as revenue or
expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking
into account the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balances

due to insurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the related
reinsurance contract.

Insurance Receivables

Premium receivables are recognized on policy inception dates and measured on initial recognition at the
fair value of the consideration for the period of coverage. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance
receivables are measured at amortized cost. The carrying value of insurance receivables is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,
with the impairment loss recorded in statement of income.

Financial Instruments

Date of recognition

The Company recagnizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statement of financial position when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognized on the trade date.

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement of financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset)
or received (in the case of a liability). Except for financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), the initial measurement of financial assets includes transaction costs. The Company classifies its
financial assets in the following categories: FVTPL, fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOC), investment securities at amortized cost and loans and receivables.

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless these are measured at FVOC! or at amaortized cost. Financial
liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL ar financial liabilities at amortized cost. The
classification of financial assets depends on the contractual terms and the business model for managing
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the financial assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company may reclassify its financial assets only

when there is a change in its business model for managing these financial assets. Reclassification of
financial liabilities is not allowed.

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Company's business model is not assessed on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios. As a second step of its
classification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether
they pass the contractual cash flows test (solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) test).

Determination of Fair Value
The Company measures financial instrument at fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient

data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair value hierarchy
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

o Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant ta the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly ohservable

o Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between Llevels in the hierarchy by re- assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input thatis significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

‘Day 1’ difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value based on other
observable current market transactions on the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose
variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the
transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ difference) in the statement of income unless it qua!ifies for
recognition as some other type of asset or liability. In cases where fair value is determined using t;lata
which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized
in the statement of income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.



For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ profit
amount.

Financial Assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVOCI include debt and equity securities. After initial measurement, investment
securities at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. The unrealized gains and losses arising from
the fair valuation of financial assets at FVOCI are excluded, net of tax as applicable, from the reported

earnings and are included in the statements of comprehensive income as ‘Fair value reserves on financial
assets at FVOCI.

Debt securities at FVOCI are those that meet both of the following conditions: (i) the asset is held within
a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets in order to both collect contractual cash
flows and sell financial assets; and (i) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the outstanding principal amount. The effective yield component of
debt securities at FVQCI, as well as the impact of restatements on foreign currency- denominated debt
securities at FVOCI, is reported in the statements of income. Interest earned on holding debt securities at
FVOCI are reported as ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest method. When the debt securities at
FVOCI are disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the statements of
comprehensive income is recognized as ‘Investment and other income’ in the statements of income. The
ECL arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in OCl with a corresponding charge to
‘Provision for impairment losses’ in the statements of income.

Equity securities designated at FVOC! are those that the Company made an irrevocable election to present
in OCl the subsequent changes in fair value. Dividends earned on holding equity securities at FVOCI are
recognized in the statements of income as ‘investment and other income’ when the right of the payment
has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Gains and losses on disposal of these
equity securities are never recycled to profit or loss, but the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized
in the statements of comprehensive income is reclassified to ‘Retained Earnings’ or any other appropriate
equity account upon disposal. Equity securities at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at amortized cost ;
Financial assets at amortized cost are debt financial assets that meet both of the following conditions:

(i) these are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and (ii) the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
SPPI on the outstanding principal amount. This accounting policy relates to the statements of financial
position captions ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ (excluding cash an hand), ‘Short-term investments’,
‘Insurance receivables’, ‘Investment securities at amortized cost’ and ‘Loans and receivables’. After initial
measurement, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
(EIR). The amortization is included in ‘Investment and other income ’ in the statements of income. Gains
and losses are recognized in statements of income when these investments are derecognized or impaired,
as well as through the amortization process. The ECL are recognized in the statements of income under
‘General and administrative expenses’. The effects of revaluation on foreign currency denominated
investments are recognized in the statements of income.

Other financial liahilities

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated as at FVPL are classified as

other financial liabilities where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company

having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holdgr. or to satisfy the

obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for ? ﬁ_xfed

number of own equity shares. The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability
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and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual

amount after deducting from the instrument a whole amount separately determined as the fair value of
the liability companent on the date of issue.

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Any effects of restatement of
foreign currency-denominated liabilities are recognized in the statement of income.

This accounting policy applies primarily to insurance payables, accounts payable and accrued expenses
and other liabilities that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered by other accounting
standards, such as retirement benefit liability and income tax payable).

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Company assesses that it has a currently enforceable right to offset if the right is not contingent on a
future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of default, and event of
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and all of the counterparties.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Expected credit loss methodology (ECL)

ECL represents credit losses that reflect an unhiased and probability-weighted amount which is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. The objective is to record lifetime losses on all financial instruments which have experienced
a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since their initial recognition. As a result, ECL allowances are now
measured at amounts equal to either (i) 12-month ECL or (ii) lifetime ECL for those financial instruments
which have experienced a SICR since initial recognition (General Approach). The 12-month ECL is the
portion of lifetime ECL that results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date. Lifetime ECL are credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In comparison, the previous incurred loss model
recognizes lifetime credit losses only when there is objective evidence of impairment.

PFRS 9 also allows the use of the loss rate approach in estimating ECL in cases where no complex portfolio
is present for an entity. As a result, the Company applies the simplified approach wherein ECL allowances
will be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The assessment of SICR that is solely based on the
change in the risk of default is not applied under the loss rate approach and the loss rate based on
historical trend is adjusted for current conditions and expectations aver the future using the overlay.

The Company applies the simplified approach in its ‘Insurance receivables’ and applies general approach
for the related debt investment securities which include ‘Financial assets at FVOCI’, ‘Investment securities
at amortized cost” and ‘Loans and receivables’.

Staging assessment
For non-credit-impaired financial instruments:

o Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have not experienced a SICR
since initial recognition. The Company recognizes a 12-month ECL for Stage 1 financial
instruments.

o Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have expe_zrignced a SICR
since initial recognition. The Company recognizes a lifetime ECL for Stage 2 financial instruments.

7



For credit-impaired financial instruments:

° Financial instruments are classified as Stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative
impact on the estimated future cash flows of a loan or a portfolio of loans. The ECL model
requires that lifetime ECL be recognized for impaired financial instruments.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by portfolio and include
quantitative changes in probabilities of default and qualitative factors, including a backstop based on
delinguency. The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since initial

recognition if the security’s credit rating, by any international or local rating agencies has deteriorated. In
such event, lifetime ECL of the security involved will be measured

ECL parameters and methodologies

ECL is a function of the probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD)
with each of the parameter independently modelled.

The PD represents the likelihaod that a credit exposure will not be repaid and will go into default in either
a 12-month horizon for Stage 1 or lifetime horizon for Stage 2. The PD for each individual instrument is
based on issuers’ external credit rating and apply forecasting techniques using historical data to estimate
the average cumulative default rates at a given point in time and workout forward- looking PD curve per
rating grade projected using economic forecasts.

EAD is modelled on historical data and represents an estimate of the outstanding amount of credit
exposure at the time a default may occur. For the Company’s financial assets, EAD represents their
carrying values.

LGD is the amount that may not be recovered in the event of default and is modelled based on issuers'
external credit rating. For issuers without internal nor external credit rating, LGD estimation is modeled
using benchmarking approach where comparable companies having the same industry and similar
financial characteristics as that of the issuer are considered.

Economic overlays

The Company incorporates economic averlays into the measurement of ECL to add a forward- locking risk
measure parallel to the expected future macroeconomic atmosphere. A broad range of economic
indicators were considered for the economic inputs. The economic indicators considered were categorized
into two sub-groups: global and local. For the global economic indicators, the following were considered:
inflation rate, real gross domestic product (GDP), unemployment rate, US dollar index, and 10- and 2-year
treasury vield. For the local economic indicators, the following were considered:

Philippine compasite index, Philippine inflation rate, Philippine real GDP, Asian to US dollar index, 10-and
2-year R2 benchmark rate, and USD/PHP exchange rate. The inputs and models used for calculating ECL
may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of the financial statements. To address
this, quantitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such
differences are significantly material. Overlay factors are modeled using Regression Analysis (backward
elimination method).

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financio! asset _ ' '
A financial asset (or where applicable a part of financial asset or a part of a group of financial assets) is
derecognized when: ‘
a. the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
b. the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
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obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through
arrangement or;

¢. the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or has neither transferred nor

retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized ta the extent of the Company’s
cantinuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability has expired, or is discharged or
cancelled. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amaunts is recognized in the statement of income.

Reinsurance

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business. Reinsurance assets represent
balances due from reinsurance companies for its share on the unpaid losses incurred by the Company.
Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are

in accordance with the reinsurance contract. Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses are included as part
of “Insurance receivables”.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each end of the reporting period or more frequently
when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs when objective
evidence exists that the Company may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract
and when the impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer can be measured
reliably. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of income.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.

The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for insurance contracts.
Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized in profit or loss as income and expenses in
the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account
the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to
reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the associated
reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance. Reinsurance
assets or liahilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired or when the
contract is transferred to another party.

When the Company enters into a proportional treaty reinsurance agreement for ceding out its insur‘a‘nce
business, the Company initially recognizes a liability at transaction price. Subsequent to initial recognlt»‘?x_w,
the portion of the amount initially recognized as a liability which is presented as “Insurance payables” in
the liabilities section of the statement of financial position will be withheld and recognized as “Funds held
for reinsurers” and included as part of the “Insurance payables” in the liabilities section of the Company
statement of financial position. The amount withheld is generally released after a year.



Deferred Acquisition Costs (DAC)

Commissions and other acquisition costs incurred during the financial period that vary with and are related
to securing new insurance contracts and or renewing existing insurance contracts, but which relates ta
subsequent financial periods, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue
margins. All other acquisition costs are recagnized as expense when incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these costs are amortized using the 24th method over the life of the
contract. Amortization is charged against the profit or loss. The unamortized acquisition costs are shown
as “Deferred acquisition costs” in the assets section of the statement of financial position.

An impairment review is performed at each end of the reporting period or more frequently when an
indication of impairment arises. The carrying value is written down to the recoverable amount. The

impairment loss is charged to profit or lass. DAC is also considered in the liability adequacy test for each
end of the reporting period.

Investment Properties

Properties held for rental yields or for capital appreciation or both rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods and services or for administrative purposes or sale in the ordinary course of business is
classified as investment property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. These consist of land,
buildings and construction in-progress. The land is carried at cost. The building is carried at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Subsequently tis
account is measured at fair value.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains
or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in profit or loss in the
year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
the end of owner-occupation and commencement of an operating lease to another party. Transfers are
made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation ar commencement of development with a view to sale.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except for land, are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any
impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including nonrefundable taxes
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income during the financial period
these are incurred.

10



Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the properties
as follows:

Number of Years
Building and Improvement 20-50
Electronic and data processing (EDP) equipment 2-5
Office equipment 5
Transportation equipment 5
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease or estimated useful life of 5 years,
whichever is shorter.

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period
and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic
benefits from items of property and equipment.

When property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation and accumulated provision for impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts.
Any gain or loss arising an derecognition of the assets, which is calculated as the difference between the

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is included in the statement of income in the
year the asset is derecognized.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost less any impairment in value. The initial cost comprises its
construction cost and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use, including borrowing costs. Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until
such time that the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use. Construction-in- progress
is recognized under 'Other assets.'

When property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation and accumulated provision for impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assets, which is calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is included in the statement of income in the
year the asset is derecognized.

Creditable Withholding Taxes (CWTs)

Creditable withholding taxes pertain to the indirect taxes paid by the Company that are withheld by its
counterparty for the payment of its expenses and other purchases. These CWTs are initially recorded at
cost as an asset under "Other assets” account.

At each end of the tax reporting deadline, these CWTs may either be offset against future tax income
payable or be claimed as a refund from the taxation authorities at the option of the Company.

At each end of the reporting period, an assessment for impairment is performed as to the recoverability
of these CWTs.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is an indication that investments
in subsidiaries, investment properties and property and equipment may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating
unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or gro-ups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
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impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An assessment is made at each end of the reporting period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amaunt of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have heen
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in

future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life.

Value-added Tax (VAT)
The input value added tax pertains to the 12% indirect tax paid by the Company in the caurse of the
Company's trade or business on local purchase of goods or services.

Output VAT pertains to the 12% tax due on the sale of insurance palicies and other goods or services by
the Company.

If at the end of any taxable month, the output VAT exceeds the input VAT, the outstanding balance is
included under “Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities” account. If the input VAT

exceeds the output VAT, the excess shall be carried over to the succeeding months and included under
“Other assets” account.

Insurance Contract Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities are recognized when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged.

Provision for Claims Reported and Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Losses

Provision for claims reported and IBNR losses are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims
incurred but not settled at the end of the reporting period, whether reported or not, together with related
claims handling casts and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays can be
experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore the ultimate cost of
which cannot be known with certainty at the reporting date. The IBNR is calculated based on standard
actuarial projection techniques or combination of such techniques, such as but not limited to the chain
ladder methaod, the expected loss ratio approach, the Bornhuetter - Ferguson method. At each reporting
date, prior year claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes made are charged to provision.

Provision for Unearned Premiums

The proportion of written premiums, gross of commissions payable to intermediaries, attributable to
subsequent periods or to risks that have not yet expired is deferred as provision for unearned premiums.
This is accounted for as “Provision for unearned premiums” as part of “Insurance contract liabilities” and
presented in the liabilities section of the statement of financial position. Premiums from short-duration
insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the contracts using the 24th method.
The change in the provision for unearned premiums is taken to profit or loss in order that revenue is
recognized over the periad of risk. Further provisions are made to cover claims under unexpired insurance
contracts which may exceed the unearned premiums and the premiums due in respect of these contracts.
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Insurance Payables

Insurance payables are recognized when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration received less attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Insurance payables are derecognized when the obligation under the liability is settled, cancelled or
expired.

Pension Cost

Benefits that are payable after the completion of employment by the qualified employees for their
retirement. The Company has no formal retirement plan duly registered with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue as of the reporting date. The Company accrues the estimated retirement benefits based on the
minimum requirements under Republic Act No. 7641, Retirement Pay Law, which provides for retirement
pay to qualified employees in the absence of any retirement plan. The Company provides for the minimum
guarantee benefits in compliance with RA 7641.

The Company’s retirement benefit obligation is measured using the accrual approach, if any. Accrual
approach is applied by calculating the expected liability as at reporting date using the current salary of the
entitled employees and the employees’ years of service, without consideration of future changes in salary
rates and service periods.

The Company’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is virtually
certain.

Equity
Paid-up share capital is recognized as issued when the stock is paid for or subscribed under a binding
subscription agreement and is measured at par value.

Contributed surplus represents the original contribution of the stockholders of the Company, in addition
to the paid-in capital stock, in order to comply with the pre-licensing requirements as provided under the
Insurance Code.

Fluctuation reserves to the appraisal increment on building relating and changes in fair market value of
financial assets at FVOCI. The balance of the fluctuation reserves will be transferred to accumulated profits
when the building and financial assets at FVOC! are disposed or derecognized.

Accumulated profits include all the accumulated earnings of the Company, net of dividends declared.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized upon transfer of services to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
services.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting
as a principal or agent. The Company concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue
arrangements.

Premiums Revenue

Gross insurance written premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of c0\.fer
provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period and are recognized on -the date on vu{hlch
the policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period for premiums
receivahle in respect of business written in prior periods.
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Premiums from short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of the
contracts using the 24th method. The portion of the premiums written that relate to the unexpired periods
of the policies at end of the reporting period are accounted for as “Provision for unearned premiums” as
part of “Insurance contract liabilities” and presented in the liabilities section of the statements of financial
position. The related reinsurance premiums ceded that pertains to the unexpired periods at end of the
reporting period are accounted for as "Deferred reinsurance premiums” and shown as part of reinsurance

assets in the statements of financial position. The net changes in these accounts between each end of
reporting periods are recognized in profit or loss,

Reinsurance Commissians
Commissions earned fram short-duration insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period
of the contracts using the 24th method. The portion of the commissions that relates to the unexpired

periods of the policies at end of the reporting period are accounted for as “Deferred reinsurance
commissions” and presented in the liabilities section of the statement of financial position.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive the payment is established.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amartized cost and interest-bearing financial instruments,
interestincome is recorded at the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation takes inta account all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options), includes any fees or
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, but not future credit losses. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original
effective interest rate. The change in carrying amount is recorded as interest income.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to
an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the ariginal effective interest rate
applied to the new carrying amount.

Rental income

Rental income from investment properties are recagnized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Other income
Income from ather sources is recognized when earned.

Expense Recognition .

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or
depletions of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other than those relating
to distribution to equity participants.

Benefits and Claims

Benefits and claims consist of benefits and claims paid to policyholders, and changes in the valuation of
Insurance contract liabilities, including IBNR. The IBNR shall be calculated based on standard actuarial
projection techniques or combination of such techniques, such as but not limited to the chai‘n ladder
method, the expected loss ratio approach, the Bornhuetter - Ferguson method. At each reportllng date,
prior year claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes made are charged to provision.

Commission Expense )

Commissions are recognized as expense over the period of the contracts using the 24th method. T.he

portion of the commissions that relates to the unexpired periods of the policies at the end of the reporting
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period is accounted for as “Deferred acquisition cost” in the assets section of the statement of financial
position.

Other underwriting expense

Other underwriting expense pertains to the costs incurred by the Company prior to the issuance of policies
to its policyholders. These costs include expenses for technical inspections, actuarial reviews and other

work that is deemed necessary to determine whether or not to accept the risks to be written. These casts
are recognized as expense as they are incurred.

Expenses

General and administrative expense, investments and other expense, except for lease agreements, are
recognized as expense as they are incurred.

Interest expense

Interest expense is charged against operations as they are incurred, and they are derived from Funds held
for reinsurers, and Lease Liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Transactions

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the Philippine Peso (P). Transactions in
foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial
transaction and are not subsequently restated.

Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date when the fair value was determined. All foreign exchange differences are taken to profit or loss,

except where it relates to equity securities where gains or losses are recognized directly in other
comprehensive income.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
ta settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss, net of any reimbursement. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an
interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized
but are disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Income Tax

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to. compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the

reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset revaluations.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regularincome tax, and unused
net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
avallable against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward of unused tax credits from
MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred tax, however, is not recognized on temporary
differences that arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a

business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor
taxable income or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each end of
the reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Movements in the deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from changes in tax rates are charged against or credited to income for the period.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized as other comprehensive income is also
recognized in the Company statement of other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes related to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Events after End of the Reporting Period

Any post period-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s paosition at the end
of the reporting period (adjusting event) are reflected in the financial statements. Past period-end events
that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed in the financial statements when material.

Note 3 - Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the Company to make
judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Future events may occur which will cause the judgments and
assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in judgments and
estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be determinable under the
circumstances.
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Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimates and assumptions, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

a. Contingencies

The Company is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of probable costs for the
resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with outside counse! handling the defense
in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results. The Company currently does not
believe that these proceedings, if any, will have a material effect on the Company’s financial position.

b. Product classification
The significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of an insured event and the
magnitude of its potential effect. As a general guideline, the Company defines significant insurance risk as
the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 5% more
than the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

The Company has determined that the insurance policies it issues have significant insurance risks and
therefore meet the definition of insurance contracts and should be accounted for as such.

c. Evaluation of business madel in managing financial assets
The Company manages its financial assets based an business models that maintain adequate level of
financial assets to match its expected cash outflows, largely arising from payments of customers’ claims,

while maintaining a strategic portfolio of financial assets for investment and trading activities consistent
with its risk appetite.

In determining the classification of a financial instrument, the Company developed business models which
reflect how it manages its portfolio of financial instruments. The Company’s business madels need nat be
assessed at entity level or as a whole but applied at the level of a portfolio of financial instruments (i.e.,
group of financial instruments that are managed together by the Company) and not on an instrument-by-
instrument basis (i.e., not based on intention or specific characteristics of individual financial instrument).
The Company evaluates in which business model financial instrument or a portfolio of financial

instruments belong to taking into consideration the objectives of each business model established by the
Company.

In addition, PFRS 9 emphasizes that if more than an infrequent and more than an insignificant sale is made
out of a portfolio of financial assets carried at amortized cost, an entity should assess whether and how
such sales are consistent with the objective of collecting contractual cash flows. In making this judgment,
the Company considers certain circumstances documented in its business model manual to assess that an
increase in the frequency or value of sales of financial instruments in a particular period is not necessarily
inconsistent with a held-to-collect business model if the Company can explain the reasons for those sales
and why those sales do not reflect a change in the Company’s objective for the business madel.

d. Operating lease commitments - Company as lessor
The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolic. The
Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of t‘he
commercial property, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

17



e. Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied properties
The Company determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making this judgment,
the Company considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independent of the ather assets

held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to
property but also to the other assets used in the production or supply process.

When properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purpose, and
these portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for as investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a praperty

does not qualify as investment property. The Company considers each property separately in making this
judgment.

Management's Use of Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at each
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liahilities within the next financial period are discussed below.

a. ECL of financial assets
The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of camplex models with a number of underlying assumptions

regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Significant factars affecting the
estimates on the ECL model include:

e Segmentation of the portfolio, where the appropriate model or ECL approach is used

o The criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the
qualitative assessment

o The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective hasis

o Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

o Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs
and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs

e Determination of assaciations between macroecanamic scenarios and economic inputs
and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

b. Valuation of insurance contract liabilities

For nonlife insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims
reported at the end of the reporting period and for the expected ultimate cost of the {BNR claims at the
reporting date. It can take a significant period of time before the ultimate claim costs can be established
with certainty and for some type of policies, IBNR claims form the majority of the statement of financial
position claims provision. The IBNR provision of the Company has been calculated using standard actuarial
projection techniques using past development patterns to determine the expected future development
and project the claim amounts for each accident year to its ultimate value. A number of different valuati.on
methodologies have been adopted, each with their own strengths and blended them together which
include: (a) paid chain ladder method (with and without Bornhuetter-Ferguson (BF) adju.stments); (b)
reported chain ladder method (with and without BF adjustments); and (c) expected loss ratio method. At
each reporting date, prior year claims estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes made are
charged ta provision.

The main assumptions underlying the estimation of the claims provision is that an entity’s? past clafms
development experience can be used to project future claims development and hence, ultimate claims
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costs. Historical claims development is mainly analyzed by accident years, as well as by significant business
lines and claim types. Large claims are usually separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face
value of loss adjustor estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their future development. In
most cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios.

Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in the historic claims development data on which the
projections are based.

The carrying values of provision for claims reported and IBNR amounted are disclosed in Note 15.

c. Fair values of financial assets

The Company carries certain financial assets at fair value, which requires extensive use of accounting
estimates and judgments. Fair value determinations for financial assets are based generally on listed or
quoted market prices. If prices are not readily determinable or if liquidating positions is reasonably
expected to affect market prices, fair value is based on either internal valuation models or management’s
estimate of amounts that could be realized under current market conditions, assuming an orderly
liquidation over a reasonable period of time. While significant components of fair value were determined
using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., fareign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates), the amaunt
of changes in fair value of these financial assets and liabilities would affect the statement of
comprehensive income.

d. Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that itis probable
that taxable income will be available against which these can be utilized. Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized. These assets
are periodically reviewed for realization. Periodic reviews cover the nature and amount of deferred
income and expense items, expected timing when assets will be used or liabilities will be required to be
reported, reliability of historical profitability of businesses expected to provide future earnings and tax
planning strategies which can be utifized to increase the likelihood that tax assets will be realized.

e. Estimation of pension obligation and other retirement benefits
The determination of pension obligation and cost of pension is dependent on the selection of certain

assumptions used in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates
and salary increase rates.

Due to the long-term nature of this plan, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. The
assumed discount rates were determined using the market yields on Philippine government bonds with
terms consistent with the expected employee benefit payout as of the reporting date. In accordance with
PAS 19, actual results that differ from the Company’s assumptions are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. While the Company believes that the
assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual experience or significant
changes in the assumptions may materially affect the pension obligations.

The carrying value of pension liability amounted to are disclosed in Note 19.

f. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate .
The Campany cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (by reference to prevailing risk-free rates) adjusted to
take into account the entity’s credit risk (i.e., credit spread).
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g. COVID-19 Pandemic

The COVID-19 pandemic did not have a significant impact on the Company’s business operations. The
Company remain fully operational with no major disruptions recorded to date.

To ensure ongoing impacts of COVID-19 have been apprapriately reflected in the Company’s financial
statements, the Company has assessed the impact of COVID-19 as follows:

o Collectability of accounts with customers continues to be closely monitored. A material
change in the provision for impairment of insurance receivables has not been identified.
The market data used by the Company in other estimates (such as risk-free borrowing rates
and data of comparable companies) are the latest available data, which already include the
economic effects of the pandemic.

The Company has also considered the increase uncertainty in determining key assumptions
within the assessment of future taxable income of the Company upan which recognition of

the deferred tax assets is assessed, including forecast of revenue and expenses, among
others.

The Company continues to monitor the risks and the ongoing impacts of COVID-19 on its business.

Iﬁote 4 - Cash and cash equivalents w

This account consists of:

2021 2020
Cash on hand and in banks 249,489,967 188,259,614
Time deposits 371,404,119 288,432,158

620,894,086 476,691,772

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Time deposit are placements made for
varying periads of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the company
and earn interest at respective time deposits rates.

Bote S - Insurance balances receivable

This account consists of:

2021 2020
Premium receivables 436,506,174 335,676,685
Due from ceding companies 33,277,227 31,810,496
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 72,734,611 67,805,870
Total 542,518,012 435,293,051
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts 1,500,962 1,500,962

541,017,050 433,792,089

Details of premium receivables for the year 2021 follows:

Amount
Within 180 days i;g,ggg,g;i
Beyond 180 days ,868,
- . 436,506,174

20



Premiums receivable are usually due within 30-180 days without interest. Management believes that the
carrying amount of its Insurance Balances Receivables approximates its net realizable value.

Following the currently effective statutory solvency measurement, the over 180 days receivable are
considered non-admitted and will therefore be deducted from the audited Net Worth to arrive at the
statutory Net Worth following the IC procedures.

[ Note 6 - Financial assets at fair value thraugh other comprehensive income

The carrying values of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income have been
determined as follows:

2021 2020
AtJanuary 1 1,670,678 2,022,056
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Fair value adjustments (158,552) (351,378)
At December 31 1,512,126 1,670,678

Fair value adjustment for the year is presented as unrealized gain (loss) on financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income in the statement of comprehensive income while its accumulated
balance is presented as part of equity in the statement of financial position.

Note 7 - Financial assets at amortized costs

The carrying values of financial assets at amortized costs have been determined as follows:

2021 2020
Atlanuary 1 333,575,137 310,794,422
Additions 83,721,724 73,743,304
Disposals (31,000,000) (51,500,000)
Amortization adjustments 446,316 537,411
At December 31 386,743,177 333,575,137

Financial assets at amortized costs consist of Investment in government securities which are deposited
with the Insurance Commission (IC) in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Code for the benefit
and security of policy holders and creditor of the Coampany.
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LNote 8 - Loans and other receivables

This account consists of:

2021 2020
Subscription receivable 233,999,300 27,045,700
Advances to agents 94,834,870 98,175,628
Other receivables 15,932,547 11,550,224
Loans receivable 8,671,547 12,144,394
Advances to officers and employees 7,414,505 7,239,071
Accrued interest 2,857,050 2,615,519
363,705,819 158,770,536
Nate 9 - Reinsurance assets j
This account consists of:
2021 2020
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses- Treaty 10,909,086 11,312,485
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses- Facultative 1,000,000 1,000,000
Reinsurers' share on IBNR losses 10,565,926 8,938,428
22,475,012 21,250,913
mote 10 - Deferred acquisition cost 7
The details of deferred acquisition cost follow:
2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 46,410,020 45,905,060
Commissions paid and accrued during the year 113,169,117 102,436,932
Amortized during the year (110,711,923) (101,931,972)
Balance at end of year 48,867,214 46,410,020
Note 11 - Deferred reinsurance premium
The details of deferred reinsurance premium follow:
2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 15,905,872 10,987,381
Premiums ceded during the year 57,141,932 59,197,134
Amortized during the year (53,238,431) (54,278,643)
Balance at end of year 19,809,373 15,905,872
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lﬂote 12 - Investment properties

This account consists of:

Building &
Land improvements Parking Slots Total
Cost
At January 1, 2020 - 24,691,600 7,000,000 31,691,600
Additions = = - -
Increase in fairvalue - = - "
At December 31, 2020 - 24,691,600 7,000,000 31,691,600
Additions 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Increase in fair value - " - s
At December 31, 2021 10,000,000 24,691,600 7,000,000 41,691,600
Note 13 - Property and equipment, net
Details of property and equipment as at December 31, are as follows:
Land & Office furniture Transportation
Building EDP equipment & equipment  equipment Total
Cost
AtlJanuary 1, 2020 201,468,814 4,387,331 6,203,080 23,837,463 236,396,688
Additions 33,703,700 881,446 399,363 468,661 35,453,170
Revaluation 40,824,400 - - - 40,824,400
At December 31, 2020 275,996,914 5,768,777 6,602,443 24,306,123 312,674,258
Additions - 733,049 970,158 5,480,000 7,183,207
Revaluation 3,720,683 - - - 3,720,683
At December 31, 2021 279,717,597 6,501,826 7,572,601 29,786,123 323,578,148
Accumulated depreciation
AtlJanuary 1, 2020 2,761,834 2,888,759 4,474,098 21,595,851 31,720,642
Charges 1,958,124 789,715 671,215 1,692,209 5,111,263
Adjustments - - - {4,288,148) (4,288,148)
At December 31, 2020 4,719,358 3,678,474 5,145,313 19,000,012 32,543,757
Charges 2,942,409 798,246 745,389 2,052,938 6,538,982
Adjustments 46,358 - - - 46,358
At December 31, 2021 7,708,725 4,476,710 5,890,702 21,052,950 39,129,097
Net book values
December 31, 2020 271,276,956 2,090,303 1,457,130 5,306,112 280,130,501

December 31, 2021

272,008,874 2,025,106 1,681,899 8,733,173

284,449,051

Depreciation and amortization for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounting to P6,538,982
and P5,111,263 are presented under general and administrative expenses.

The Company had its buildings located in Pasig City revalued as of April 15, 2021 by an independent

appraiser. Details of the revalued properties follow:

At revalued Revaluation
amount At cost surplus
Buildings 18,582,300 15,203,700 3,378,600
Less: Accumulated depreciation - 342,083 (342,083)
Net carrying amount 18,582,300 14,861,617 3,720,683
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LNote 14 - Other assets

This account consists of:

2021 2020
Prepaid authentication fees 8,738,747 8,658,846
Deposits 1,355,297 1,021,960
Excess input tax 697,722 1,229,318
Security fund 48,439 48,439
10,840,205 10,958,563
mote 15 - Insurance contract liabilities
This account consists of:
2021 2020
Claims payable 144,829,830 109,932,120
Reserve for unearned premium 264,736,897 233,980,972
Catastrophe loss reserve 861,973 356,776
410,428,700 344,269,868
The details of claims payable follow:
2021 2020
Outstanding claims payable 106,208,954 71,214,746
Provision for IBNR 23,031,000 22,350,000
MFAD and handling expense 15,589,876 16,367,374
144,829,830 109,932,120
The details of reserve for unearned premium follow:
2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 233,980,972 210,688,982
Policies written during the year 615,122,253 528,957,959
Policies assumed during the year 4,419,536 2,623,783
Premiums earned during the year (588,785,864) (508,289,752)
Balance at end of year 264,736,897 233,980,972
Note 16 - Reinsurance payable
This account consists of:
2021 2020
Due to reinsurers 72,633,816 54,507,462
Funds held for reinsurers 3,412,677 9,549,864
76,046,493 64,057,326
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LNote 17 - Deferred commission income j

The details of deferred commission income follow:

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 5,220,106 4,606,438 -

Income collected and earned during the year 11,367,125

8,272,382
Amortized during the year (7,115,256) (7,658,714)
Balance at end of year 9,471,975 5,220,106
wote 18 - Accounts and other payables
This account consists of:
2021 2020
Accounts payable 15,270,468 16,912,613
Taxes payable 18,003,404 23,523,943
Other payables 8,419,094 7,828,583
41,692,966 48,265,139

LNote 19 - Pension liability

The Company has a defined contribution plan, covering substantially all of its employees, which requires
contribution to be made to administered funds. The plan provides a retirement benefit equal to the

member’s total accumulated value in the fund, which shall consist of the employer accumulated value and
employee accumulated value.

2021 2020
Defined benefit obligation 9,512,975 9,821,944
Less: Fair value of plan assets 13,299,744 12,923,714
(3,786,769) (3,101,770)

The retirement expense under the general and administrative expenses account amounted to P2,675,127
and P2,152,326 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Note 20 - Share capital

Details of the Company’s share capital are as follows:

2021 2020
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Authorized share capital ~ P100 par value

Balance at beginning of year 9,000,000 900,000,000 9,000,000 900,000,000

Increase during the year 4,000,000 400,000,000 - -

Balance at end of year 13,000,000 1,300,000,000 9,000,000 900,000,000
Paid up 00

Balance at beginning of year 8,729,543 872,954,300 6,972,801 697,280,1

Paid during the year 1,930,464 193,046,400 1,756,742 175,674,200

Balance at end of year 10,660,007 1,066,000,700 8,729,543 872,954,300
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The Securities and Exchange Commission approved on August 31, 2021 the Company'’s application for
increase in capital stock from P900 million divided into 9 million shares with a par value of P100 each, to
P1.3 billion divided into 13 million shares with a par value of P100 each.

U\lote 21 - Subscribed share capital

The Board of Directors approved on various dates the subscriptions of various shareholders payable until
September 30, 2022 amounting to P233,999,300. The details of the Company’s subscribed share capital

are as follows:

2021 2020
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Ordinary shares
Balance at beginning of year 270,457 27,045,700 2,027,199 202,719,900
Subscribed during the year 4,000,000 400,000,000 - -
Paid during the year (1,930,464) (193,046,400} (1,756,742) (175,674,200)
Balance at end of year 2,339,993 233,999,300 270,457 27,045,700

uvote 22 - Deposit for future subscription

This account represents cash deposits made by the shareholders to be applied on their future
subscriptions of shares. This account had no balance as of December 31, 2021.

Note 23 - Contingency surplus

This account serves as a reserve to cover unexpected losses as well as to cover the short fall if the earned
surplus is not adequate. This account had balance of P500,000 as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Note 24 - Contributed surplus

This account represents temporary investment of the shareholders to cover up capital and net worth
impairment as determined by the Insurance Commission. This account had balance of P68,812 as at

December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Note 25 - Fluctuation reserves

This account consists of:

2021 2020
Revaluation surplus 140,769,527 134,712,350
Fluctuation reserve on stocks (175,987) (17,435)
140,593,540 134,694,915
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The details of revaluation surplus follow:

2021 2020
Balance, beginning of year 134,712,350 94,272,800
Adjustments 3,666,975 -
Increase in fair value during the year 3,720,683 40,824,400
Amortization during the year (1,330,481) {384,850)
Balance, end of year 140,768,527 134,712,350
The details of fluctuation reserve on stocks follaw:
2021 2020
Balance, beginning of year (17,435) 333,942
Increase (decrease) in market value during the year (158,552) (351,377)
Balance, end of year {175,987) {17,435)

LNote 26 - Accumnulated profits

Prior year adjusiment

Prior year adjustment in 2021 amounting to P3,713,333 pertains to correction of accumulated
depreciation on building which should have been recorded as P4,766,316 instead of P4,719,958 and

revaluation surplus which should have been recorded as P138,379,325 instead of P134,712,350.

Prior year adjustment in 2020 amounting to P4,288,148 pertains to correction of accumulated
depreciation on transportation equipment which should have been recorded as P11,323,715 instead of

P15,611,863.

Amortization of revaluation surplus

2021 2020
Depreciation on revalued amount 2,801,025 1,109,689
Less: Depreciation on cost 1,470,544 724,839
1,330,481 384,850
Note 27 - Gross premiums earned on insurance contracts
The details of this account follow:
2021 2020
Gross premiums written
Direct 615,122,252 528,957,959
Assumed 4,419,536 2,623,783
Total gross premiums on insurance contracts 619,541,788 531,581,742
Gross change in reserve for unearned premium {30,755,924) (23,291,990)
Gross premiums earned on insurance contracts 588,785,864 508,289,752
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LNote 28 - Reinsurers’ share on gross premiums earned

The details of this account follow:

2021 2020
Ceded premium 57,141,932 59,197,134
Gross change in deferred reinsurance premium (3,903,501) (4,918,491)
Reinsurers' share on gross premiums earned 53,238,431 54,278,643
Note 29 - Commission income
The details of this account follow:
2021 2020
Collected and earned during the year 11,367,125 8,272,382
Gross change in deferred commission income (4,251,869) (613,668)
7,115,256 7,658,714
Nate 30 - Net insurance benefits and claims
The details of this account follow:
2021 2020
Insurance contract benefits and claims paid 55,450,706 7,812,772
Gross change in claims payable 34,897,710 45,561,520
90,348,416 53,374,292
Note 31 - Commission expense
The details of this account follow:
2021 2020
Paid and accrued during the year 113,169,117 102,436,932
Gross change in deferred acquisition cost (2,457,194) (504,960)
110,711,923 101,931,972

Note 32 - Other underwriting expense

This account consists of expenses related to underwriting CTPL insurance contracts.
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l_Note 33 - Investment and other income

This account consists of:

2021 2020
Investment and interest income 17,683,472 17,673,065
Gain (Loss) an forex 9,870 (8,444)
Unrealized gain on farex 317 -
Other income 9,409,451 1,797,273
27,103,110 19,461,894
Note 34 - General and administrative expenses
This account consists of:
2021 2020

Marketing expenses 69,548,945 64,456,509
Salaries and wages 34,460,965 30,497,558
Printing, stationery and office supplies 16,847,017 14,971,420
Agency expenses 13,362,973 11,797,282
Professional and technical development 11,814,454 9,658,193
Transportation 11,414,028 10,344,451
Depreciation and amortization 6,538,982 5,111,263
Rental 4,964,195 2,892,241
Representation and entertainment 4,021,541 4,540,111
Taxes and licenses 3,739,785 4,719,806
SSS, PHIC, and HDMF contributions 2,715,089 2,484,028
Retirement expense 2,675,127 2,152,326
Communication and postage 2,153,504 2,099,773
Directors fees and allowances 2,133,333 1,600,000
Light and water 2,104,954 1,558,620
Repairs and maintenance 1,809,406 1,966,734
Association dues 1,229,077 491,591
Professional fee 793,036 708,678
Interest 710,752 35,768
Employees welfare 550,114 150,354
Insurance 346,601 345,893
Legal fees 250,000 443,600
Contributions and donations 53,550 74,097
Provision for uncollectible accounts - 549,124
Other operating expenses 25,166,927 20,181,204

219,404,355 193,830,624

29



mote 35 - Current and deferred taxes j

Income tax expense for the years ended December 31 is composed of:

2021 2020
Regular corparate income tax 13,133,704 11,420,752
Final tax 3,536,695 3,505,115

16,670,399 14,925,867

The reconciliation of the tax on pretax income computed at the statutory rate to tax expense is shown
below:

2021 2020
Tax on pretax income 16,885,870 15,535,624
Add (deduct) tax effects of:
Nontaxable loss {income) (79) 2,322
Non-deductible expense 668,782 742,899
Income subject to lower income tax rate (884,174) {1,354,978)
16,670,399 14,925,867

LNote 36 - Supplementary information required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue

On October 10, 2007, Revenue Regulations {R.R.) No 12 was signed, amending certain provisions of R.R.N0.9-
98 relative to the due date within which to pay MCIT imposed on domestic corporation and resident foreign
corporations. These revenue regulations require the quarterly payment of MCIT. The quarterly MCIT paymenits
shall be creditable against the tax that will be due at the end of the taxahle year whether it be RCIT or MCIT.
The regulations took effect beginning on the income tax return for fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2007,

In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR15-2010 hereunder are the information on taxes and
license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

Qutput Value Added Tax (VAT)
The Company is a VAT-registered company with VAT output tax declaration of P73,930,004 for the year
based on the premiums collected amounting to P616,083,367.

Input VAT
The Company has claimed VAT input amounting to P16,619,300 for the year 2021.

Percentage Tax (PT)
The Company paid PT amounting to P41,385 during 2021.

Documentary Stamp Tax (DST)
The Company paid/accrued DST amounting ta P75,628,006 during 2021.

Fire Service Tax (FST)
The Company paid/accrued FST amounting to P755,587 during 2021.
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Withholding Taxes
The amount of withholding taxes paid/accrued for the year amounted to:

Amount
At source 14,130,961
Compensation 1,765,036
15,895,997
Taxes and Licenses
This account cansists of:
Amount
Real property tax 589,442
Licenses and fees 477,718
Other taxes and licenses 2,772,625
3,839,785
u\lote 37 - Management of insurance and financial risks —|

Governance Framework
The primary objective of the Company's risk and financial management framework is to protect the
Company from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of the Company’s performance objectives,

including failure to exploit opportunities. The company recognizes the importance of having efficient and
effective risk management systems in place.

Regulatory Framework

Regulators are interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and maintain close vigil to ensure
that the Company is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the regulators are
alsa interested in ensuring that the Company maintains appropriate solvency positions to meet liabilities
arising from claims and that the risk levels are at acceptable levels. The operations of the Company are
subject to the regulatory requirements of the IC. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and
monitoring of activities but alsa impose certain restrictive provisions {e.g., capital adequacy to minimize

the risk of default and insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to meet the unforeseen liabilities
as these arise).

Financial Risks

The company is expased to financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance assets
and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that the proceeds fram its financial assets
are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The most important
camponents of this financial risk are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. These risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific
market maovements.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss.

The Company manages the level of credit risk by setting up exposure limits for each counterparty of group
of counterparties, and industry segments; right of offset where counterparties are both debtors and
creditors; guidelines on obtaining collaterals and guarantees; reporting of credit risk exposurgs;
monitoring compliance with credit risk policy and review of credit risk policy for pertinence and changing
enviranment.
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The Company sets the maximum amounts and limits that may be advanced to place with individual
corporate counterparties which are set by reference to their long-term ratings.

Credit risk exposure in respect of all other counterparties is managed by setting standard husiness terms
that are required to be met by all counterparties. Commissions due to intermediaries are netted off against
amounts receivables from them to reduce the risk of doubtful accounts.

The credit quality of the financial assets was determined as follows:

a. Cash and cash equivalent

These are classified as investment grade. These are deposited, placed ar invested in foreign and local banks
belonging to the top banks in the Philippines in terms of resources and profitability.

b. Insurance and other loans and receivables

The Company uses a credit rating concept based on the borrowers overall credit warthiness. Investment
grade is given to borrowers and counterparties having good standing in terms of credit and paying habits
and their outstanding account balance does not exceed 30% of their total production. Below investment
grade is given to borrowers and counterparties having low standing in terms of credit and paying habits
and their outstanding balance exceeds 50% of their total praduction.

C. Debt securities

These are classified as investment grade. The government debt securities are issued by local government
authority and are considered as risk-free debt securities.

d. Equity securities }
Listed equity shares are classified as investment grade. Unlisted equity shares are classified as non-
investment grade.

The Company did not have any significant concentration of credit risk with a single counterparty or group
of counterparties, geographical and industry segments as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Liguidity Risk ‘

Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in arising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either the inability to
sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing on repayment of a contractual
obligation; or insurance liahility falling due for payment earlier than expected; or inability to generate cash
inflows as anticipated.

The major liquidity risk confranting the Company is the potential daily calls on its available cash resources
in respect of claims arising from insurance contracts.

The Company manages liquidity risk by specifying minimum proportion of fund to meet emergency calls;
specifying the sources of funding and the events that would trigger the plan; determining concentration
of funding sources; reporting of liquidity risk exposure; monitoring compliance with liquidity risk policy
and review of liquidity risk policy for pertinence and changing environment.

The tables below analyze financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company into their relevant
maturity groups based on the remaining period at the reporting date to their contractual maturities or
expected repayment dates.
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2021

More than

Up toayear® ayear Total
Cash and cash equivalents 620,894,086 - 620,894,086
Insurance balances receivable 541,017,051 = 541,017,051
Financial assets at FvaCl 1,512,126 - 1,512,126
Financial assets at amortized cost 45,913,038 340,830,139 386,743,177
Loans and receivables 3,753,298 359,956,521 363,709,819
Reinsurance assets 22,475,012 - 22,475,012
Other assets 8,787,188 1,355,296 10,142,484
Total flnancial assets 1,244,351,793 702,141,956 1,946,493,755
Insurance balances payable 145,691,803 145,691,803
Reinsurance payable 76,046,493 76,046,493
Commissian payable 76,006,885 - 76,006,885
Accounts and other payables 41,692,966 - 41,692,966
Total financlal liabilitles 339,438,147 - 339,439,147
“Up to a year are all commitments which are either due viithin one year or are payaoble on demand.

2020
Morethan

Up tag year® ayear Total
Cash and cash equivalents 476,681,772 - 476,691,772
Insurance balances receivable 433,792,089 - 433,792,089
Financial assets at FVOC) 1,670,678 - 1,670,678
Financial assels at amortized cost 30,939,267 302,635,870 333,575,137
Loans and receivables 146,761,142 12,009,394 158,770,536
Reinsurance assets 21,250,913 - 21,250,913
Other assets g 8,707,285 1,021,950 9,729,245
Total financial assets 1,119,813,146 315,667,224 1,435,480,370
Insurance balances payable 110,288,897 . 110,288,897
Reinsurance payable 64,057,326 . 64,057,326
Commission payable 58,862,399 - 58,862,399
Accounts and other payables 48,265,139 - 48,265,139
Total financial liabilities 281,473,761 - 281,473,761

“Up to a year are all commitments which are either due within ane year ar are payoble on demand.

The table below analyzes nonfinancial assets and liabilities of the Company into amounts expected to
be recovered/settled within 12 months {current) and beyond 12 months (noncurrent).

2021 2020

Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
Deferred acquisition cost 4B,867,214 - 46,410,020 -
Deferred reinsurance premium 19,805,373 - 15,305,872 -
Investment properties - 41,691,600 - 31,691,600
Property and equipment- net - 284,449,051 - 280,130,501
Other assets 697,722 - 1,229,318 -
Total nonfinanclal assets 69,374,309 326,140,651 63,545,210 311,822,101
Insurance cantract liabilities 264,736,897 - 233,980,972 -
Deferred commission income 9,471,975 - 5,220,106 -
Tatal nonfinancial liabllities 274,208,872 - 239,201,078 -

It is unusual for a company primarily transacting insurance business to predict the requirement of funding
with absolute certainty as theory of prabability is applied on insurance contracts to ascertain the likely
provisions and the time period when such liabilities will require settlement. The amounts and maturiFies
in respect of insurance liabilities are thus based on management’s best estimate based on statistical
techniques and past experience.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and the market prices (_pri?e risk), whether
such change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors
affecting all instruments traded in the market.
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The Company structure levels of market risk it accepts through a market risk policy that determines what
constitutes market risk for the Company; basis used to fair value financial assets and liahilities; asset
allocation and portfolio limit structure; diversification benchmarks by type of instrument; sets out the net
exposure limits by each counterparty or group of counterparties, reporting of market risk exposure and

breaches; and monitoring compliances with market risk policy and review of market risk policy for
pertinence and changing environment.

{a.) Currency Risk
The Company’s principal transactions are carried out in Philippines Peso and its exposure to foreign

exchange risk arises primarily with respect to the US Dollar, as it deals with fareign reinsurers in its
settlement of its obligations and receipts of any claim reimbursement.

The Company’s financial assets are denominated in the same currencies as its insurance liabilities, which
mitigate the foreign currency exchange rate risk. Thus, the main foreign exchange risk arises from

recognized assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than those in which insurance liabilities
are expected to be settled.

(b) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value/future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in interest rates.

(c) Price Risk
The Company'’s price risk exposure at year-end relates to financial assets and liabilities whose values will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, principally, equity securities.

Such investment securities are subject to price risk due to changes in market values of instruments arising

either from factors specific to individual instruments or their issuers or factors affecting all instruments
traded in the market.

The Company’s market risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring objectives
and constraints on investments, diversification plan, and limits on investment in each sector and market.
The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all other
variables held constant, showing the impact on equity (due to changes in fair value of AFS financial assets).
The correlatian of variables will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on price risk,
but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in variables, variables had to be changed on an individual
basis. It should be noted that movements in these variables are non-linear.

Insurance Risk

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the uncertainty
of the amount and timing of any resulting claim. The principal risk that the Company faces under such
contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of insurance
liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, when actual benefits paid are
greater than originally estimated and subsequent development of long-term claims.

For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from climate changes, natural disasters
and terrorist activities. These risks vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the
Company and types of risks insured.

The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insura_nce contracts
and as a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by changes in any subset
of the portfolio.

The variability if risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwri’Fing strateg_ies,
strict claims review policies to assess all new and outgoing claims, as well as the investigation of possible
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fraudulent claims. The Company also enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims,
in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future develo

pments that can negatively impact the
Company.

The Company also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claims amounts on certain contracts as well
as the use of reinsurance arrangements. The purpose of these underwriting and reinsurance strategies is

to limit exposure to catastrophes to a predetermined maximum amount based on the Company's
premiums retained.

The majority of the reinsurance business ceded is placed on quota share basis with retention limits in
varying by product line. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with

the assumptions used for ascertaining the underlying policy benefits and are presented in the balance
sheets as reinsurance assets.

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its
policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to the reinsurance ceded, to the extent that
any reinsurers is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreements.

The Company’s placement of reinsurance is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a single
reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance

contract. There is no single counterparty exposure that exceeds 5% of the total reinsurance assets at the
balance sheet dates.

Note 38 - Related party transaction

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to common contral or common significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. Transactions between related parties are on an
arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with non-related parties.

The Company’s related parties include its key management and shareholders.

The compensation and benefits paid to the Company’s key management personnel follows:

Amount
Salaries and wages 5,825,200
Retirement and other henefits 1,526,675
7,351,875

Note 39 - Capital management and regulatory requirements

The Company maintains a certain level of capital to ensure sufficient solvency margins and to adequat.ely
protect the policyholders. The level of capital maintained is usually higher than the m.xmmum capital
requirements set by the regulators and the amount computed under the Risk Based Capital Moc-iel. The
Company fully complied with the externally imposed capital requirements during the reported financial
periods.

The IC capital requirements are the Margin of Solvency (MOS), Fixed Capitalization Reguirements, Risk-
Based Capital (RBC) and unimpaired capital requirement.
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The operation of the Company is subject to the regulatory requirement of the IC. Such regulations not only
prescribe approval and monitoring activities but also impose certain restrictive provisions (e.g., margin of
solvency to minimize the risk of default and insolven
the unforeseen

requirements).

ze t ¢y on the part of the insurance companies to meet
liabilities as these arise, fixed capitalization requirements, risk-based capital

Margin of Solvency (MOS)

The company is required to maintain, at all times an MOS equal to P500,000 or 10% of the total amount
of its net premiums written during the preceding year, whichever is higher. The MOS shall be excess of
the value of its admitted assets (as defined under the Code) exclusive of its paid-up capital over the
amount of its liabilities, reserve for unearned premiums and reinsurance reserves.

The final amount of the MOS can be determined only after the accounts of the Company have been
examined by the IC, specifically as to admitted and non-admitted assets as defined in the Code.

If an insurance company failed to meet the minimum required MOS, the IC is authorized to suspend or
revoke all certificates of authority granted to such companies, its officers and agents, and no new business
shall be done by and for such company until its authority is restored by the IC.

Fixed Capitalization Requirements

On August 5, 2013, the President of the Philippines approved Republic Act No. 10607 to be known as the
“New Insurance Code” which provides the new capitalization requirements for all existing insurance
companies based on net worth on a staggered basis starting June 30, 2013 up to December 31, 2022. The

following presents the amount of required net worth and the schedule of compliance per New Insurance
Code:

Networth Compliance date

P 250,000,000 June 30, 2013
550,000,000 December 31, 2016
900,000,000 December 31, 2019

1,300,000,000 December 31, 2022

On January 13, 2015, the IC issued the Circular Letter (CL} No. 2015-02-A which provides for the
clarification and minimum capital requirement under Sections 194, 197, 200 and 289 of the New Insurance
Code. The said circular supersedes the Department Order Nos. 27-06 and 15-2015 and CL Nos. 22-2008
and 26-2008.

The minimum networth requirement must remain unimpaired for the continuance of the license.

Risk-based Capital Requirement

IMC No. 6-2006 provides for the RBC framework for the non-life insurance industry to establish the
required amounts of capital to be maintained by the companies in relation to their investment and
insurance risks. Every non-life insurance company is annually required to maintain a minimum RBC ratio
of 100% and not to fail the trend test. Failure to meet the minimum RBC ratio shall subject the insurance
company to the corresponding regulatory intervention, which has been defined at various levels.

The RBC ratio shall be calculated as net worth divided by the RBC requirement. Net worth shall inclulde
the Company’s paid-up capital, contributed and contingency surplus and unassigned surplu§. Revaluation
and fluctuation reserve accounts shall form part of net worth not only to the extent authorized by. the IC.
The RBC requirement is the ratio of the number of insurers which are able to meet the corresponding RBC
hurdle rate requirement for a given year to the total number of insurers in the industry.
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The final amount of the RBC ratio can be determined only after the accounts of the Company have been

examined by the IC specifically as to admitted and non-admitted assets as defined under the Insurance
Code.

Unimpaired Capital Requirement

IMC 22-2008 provided that for the purposes of determining compliance with the law, rules and regulations
requiring that the paid-up capital should remain intact and unimpaired at all times, the balance sheet
should show that the net worth or stockholders’ equity is at least equal to the actual paid-up capital.

Consolidated Compliance Framewark

IMC No. 10-2006 integrated the compliance standards for the fixed capitalization and RBC framework.
Under this IMC, subsequent to year 2006, the fixed capitalization requirement for a given year may be
suspended for insurers that comply with the required RBC hurdle rate, provided that the industry complies
with the required industry RBC ratio compliance rate. The IMC provides the annual schedule of progressive
rates for the Industry RBC Ratio Compliance Rates and the RBC Hurdle Rates from 2007 to 2011. For the
review year 2011 which shall be based on the 2010 synopsis, the Industry RBC Ratio Compliance Rate is
90% and the RBC Hurdle Rate is 250%. For the review year 2010 which shall be based on the 2009 synopsis,
the Industry RBC Ratio Compliance Rate is 90% and the RBC hurdle rate is 200%. Failure to achieve one of
the rates will result in the imposition of the fixed capitalization requirement far the year under review.

Note 40 - Contingencies

The Company operates in the insurance industry and has various contingent liabilities arising in the
ordinary conduct of business, which are either pending decision by the courts or being contested, the
outcome of which are not presently determinable. In the opinion of management and its legal counsel,
the eventual liability under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have material or adverse effect on the
Company's financial position and results of operations.
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